
 

 

 
 

Members: Gwil Wren (Chair), Nick Thwaites (Vice-Chair), Ian Aldridge, 
Benet Allen, Marcus Barr, Sue Buller, Norman Cavill, 
Simon Coles, Habib Farbahi, Ed Firmin, Barrie Hall, 
John Hassall, Libby Lisgo, Danny Wedderkopp and 
Loretta Whetlor 

 
 

Agenda 

1. Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive and note any declarations of disclosable 
pecuniary or prejudicial or personal interests in respect of 
any matters included on the agenda for consideration at this 
meeting. 
  
(The personal interests of Councillors and Clerks of 
Somerset County Council, Town or Parish Councils and 
other Local Authorities will automatically be recorded in the 
minutes.) 
 

 

3. Public Participation   

 The Chair to advise the Committee of any items on which 
members of the public have requested to speak and advise 
those members of the public present of the details of the 
Council’s public participation scheme. 
  
For those members of the public who have submitted any 
questions or statements, please note, a three minute time 
limit applies to each speaker and you will be asked to speak 
before Councillors debate the issue. 
 
Temporary measures during the Coronavirus pandemic 

Due to the temporary legislation (within the Coronavirus Act 
2020, which allowed for use of virtual meetings) coming to an 
end on 6 May 2021, the council’s committee meetings will 

 

SWT Corporate Scrutiny Committee 
 
Wednesday, 26th January, 2022, 
6.15 pm 
 
The John Meikle Room - The Deane 
House 
 
 

 



 

 

now take place in the office buildings at the John Meikle 
Room, Deane House, Belvedere Road, Taunton. 
Unfortunately due to capacity requirements the Chamber at 
West Somerset House is not able to be used at this current 
moment. 

Following the Government guidance on measures to reduce 
the transmission of coronavirus (COVID-19), the council 
meeting rooms will have very limited capacity. With this in 
mind, we will be requesting that members of the public who 
have registered to speak attend the meetings in person at 
the office buildings, if they wish. (We will still be offering to 
those members of the public that are not comfortable in 
attending, for their statements to be read out by a member of 
the Governance team). Please can we urge all members of 
the public who are only interested in listening to the debate to 
view our live webcasts from the safety of their own home to 
help prevent the transmission of coronavirus (COVID-19). 

 
 

4. Corporate Scrutiny Committee Forward Plan  (Pages 5 - 6) 

 To receive items and review the Forward Plan. 
 

 

5. Draft General Fund Revenue Budget and Capital 
Estimates 2022/23  

(Pages 7 - 38) 

 This matter is the responsibility of Executive Councillor 
Henley, Corporate Resources    
 
Report Author:  Emily Collacott, Lead Finance Business 
Partner (Deputy S151 Officer)  
 

 

 
 

 
ANDREW PRITCHARD 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 



 

 

Please note that this meeting will be recorded. At the start of the meeting the Chair 
will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded and webcast. You should be 
aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act 2018. Data 
collected during the recording will be retained in accordance with the Council’s 
policy. Therefore unless you are advised otherwise, by entering the Council 
Chamber and speaking during Public Participation you are consenting to being 
recorded and to the possible use of the sound recording for access via the website 
or for training purposes. If you have any queries regarding this please contact the 
officer as detailed above.  
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting and listen to the 
discussions. There is time set aside at the beginning of most meetings to allow the 
public to ask questions. Speaking under “Public Question Time” is limited to 3 
minutes per person in an overall period of 15 minutes. The Committee Administrator 
will keep a close watch on the time and the Chair will be responsible for ensuring the 
time permitted does not overrun. The speaker will be allowed to address the 
Committee once only and will not be allowed to participate further in any debate. 
Except at meetings of Full Council, where public participation will be restricted to 
Public Question Time only, if a member of the public wishes to address the 
Committee on any matter appearing on the agenda, the Chair will normally permit 
this to occur when that item is reached and before the Councillors begin to debate 
the item.  
 
If an item on the agenda is contentious, with a large number of people attending the 
meeting, a representative should be nominated to present the views of a group. 
These arrangements do not apply to exempt (confidential) items on the agenda 
where any members of the press or public present will be asked to leave the 
Committee Room. Full Council, Executive, and Committee agendas, reports and 
minutes are available on our website: www.somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk  
 
The meeting room, including the Council Chamber at The Deane House are on the 
first floor and are fully accessible. Lift access to The John Meikle Room, is available 
from the main ground floor entrance at The Deane House. The Council Chamber at 
West Somerset House is on the ground floor and is fully accessible via a public 
entrance door. Toilet facilities, with wheelchair access, are available across both 
locations. An induction loop operates at both The Deane House and West Somerset 
House to enhance sound for anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter. 
For further information about the meeting, please contact the Governance and 
Democracy Team via email: governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk  
 
If you would like an agenda, a report or the minutes of a meeting translated into 
another language or into Braille, large print, audio tape or CD, please email: 
governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk  
 

http://www.somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk/
mailto:governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk
mailto:governance@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk




CORPORATE SCRUTINY
Meeting Draft Agenda Items Lead PFH/ Lead Officer Executive Report?
26th January 2022 General Fund Revenue Budget and Capital Estimates 2022/23 Cllr R Henley / P. Fitzgerald Yes
Budget Special
SRD = 14 January
Exec RD = 28 January
Informal Exec RD = 4 Jan
SMT RD = 8 December
2nd February 2022 Reports from Executive PFH - Cllr M Rigby Cllr M Rigby 
SRD = 21 January Reports from Executive PFH - Cllr M Kravis (TBC) Cllr M Kravis 
Exec RD = 4 February 
Informal Exec RD = 4 Jan
SMT RD = 8 December
2nd March 2022 Financial Performance 2021/22 Q3 Cllr R Henley / P. Fitzgerald Yes
SRD = 18 February Capital Investment and Treasury Strategy 2022/23 Cllr R Henley / P. Fitzgerald Yes
Exec RD = 4 March Corporate Performance Report Q3 Cllr R Henley / M.Riches Yes
Informal Exec RD = 1 Feb Corporate Scrutiny Chair's Annual Report Chair of the Committee
SMT RD = 19 January
6th April 2022 Reports from Executive PFH - tbc
SRD = 25 March Public Transport Task and Finish Report Cllr L Whetlor / M Prouse
Exec RD = 6 April
Informal Exec RD = 8 March 
SMT RD = 23 February
4th May 2022
SRD - 21 April (BH)
Exec RD - 6 May
Informal Exec RD - 5 April
SMT RD - 23 March Reports from Executive PFH - tbc
1st June 2022
SRD - 20 May
Exec RD - 3 June
Informal Exec RD - 4 May
SMT RD - 20 April Reports from Executive PFH - tbc

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 4





Governance Team to populate Report number: Report Number: SWT 9/22 

Somerset West and Taunton Council  
 
Corporate Scrutiny Committee – 26 January 2022 

 
Draft General Fund Revenue Budget and Capital Estimates 2022/23 

 
This matter is the responsibility of Executive Councillor Henley, Corporate Resources    
 
Report Author:  Emily Collacott, Lead Finance Business Partner (Deputy S151 Officer)  
 
1 Executive Summary / Purpose of the Report  

1.1 The report sets out the draft budget estimates for 2022/23, Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) forecasts, and 2022/23 Capital Programme with the proposed sources of 
funding. Importantly this is a balanced budget with resources available to meet spending 
plans for the year. 

1.2 The Provisional Finance Settlement for 2022/23 was issued by Government on 17 
December, and included details regarding general revenue grant funding, New Homes 
Bonus, COVID funding and business rates retention baseline and tariff. The overall level 
of ‘Core Spending Power’ funding anticipated to be available to the Council in 2022/23, 
based on Settlement funding, is a cash standstill position. This represents a real-terms 
reduction given inflationary pressures and is well below the average increase of 6.9% in 
the core spending power for all-England local authorities. However, the Settlement is 
better than the estimates previously included in the MTFP. The final Finance Settlement 
is expected to be published in late January/early February. Despite the Government 
setting a 3-year Budget in August 2021 the Finance Settlement announced is for one-
year only, with funding for later years probably to be announced next December. 

1.3 The Executive is minded to propose a council tax increase of 2.95% (£5 on a Band D) 
in 2022/23, making the annual Band D charge £174.63. The increase in the tax rate 
provides an additional £283,247 income. An increase in the tax base – the total count of 
Band D Equivalent dwellings – also adds £117,760 to the total estimated council tax 
income for 2022/23, representing an overall increase of £401,007 compared to 2021/22. 

1.4 The Executive is also minded to precept £29,458 in special expenses for the Unparished 
Area of Taunton. This results in an annual council tax rate at £1.93 for a Band D property 
in the Unparished Area of Taunton. 

1.5 The budget for 2022/23 has been prepared in line with the Council’s agreed Financial 
Strategy. Despite the Government’s 3-Year Spending Review announced in August 
2021, the local Government Finance Settlement has again been for one year only which 
means future funding remains uncertain. The effects and uncertainty of the COVID 
pandemic on both the local economy and public sector services is also ongoing.  

1.6 In addition, the Secretary of State confirmed in July 2020 his preference to implement 
local government restructuring in Somerset leading to the creation of a single unitary 
council to replace the County Council and four District Councils in Somerset from April 
2023. Somerset West and Taunton’s financial strategy and proposed budget for 2022/23 Page 7

Agenda Item 5



recognises this will require significant resources to ensure services remain stable with 
minimal disruption, as well as additional resources to fund the implementation costs 
associated with this major restructuring programme.  

1.7 Executive present a balanced draft budget for 2022/23, which includes use of temporary 
funding from reserves to soften the budget gap in the face of current service demands 
and funding uncertainty and to meet service priorities. Longer term the Medium-Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) presents a deficit for 2023/24 onwards which would have been 
addressed to maintain ongoing financial sustainability were it not superseded by local 
government reorganisation. The forecasts for 2023/24 are set out as an indicative 
position for a continuation of Somerset West and Taunton, however these estimates will 
be superseded when district services are transferred to the new unitary Somerset 
Council in April 2023. There is currently a high degree of uncertainty on how the overall 
funding position will be affected by this structural change and the finance settlement for 
2023/24. Equally the business case for the single unitary aims to deliver annual savings 
of £18.5m per year. Delivering financial sustainability and tackling the underlying deficit 
will be a key financial planning challenge for the unitary.  

1.8 The total costs funded by reserves in 2022/23 is £6.027m. This provides funding for 
significant one-off costs totalling £3.431m, planned use of £2m from earmarked reserves 
to fund capital debt repayment (releasing 2022/23 resources for in-year service costs), 
and £0.596m as a general contribution towards funding ongoing service costs. The latter 
two allocations amount to £2.6m are not sustainable in the medium or long term but 
delivers the current financial strategy up to 2022/23. Additionally, the Budget includes 
£6.379m from earmarked reserves in respect of deferred S31 Grant which offsets the 
business rates Collection Fund Deficit because of COVID-related rate reliefs in both 
2020/21 and 2021/22 and the Tax Income Guarantee (TIG) scheme funded by 
Government in 2020/21. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 The Executive recommends Full Council approve the Revenue Budget, Council Tax 
Rate and Capital Programme for 2022/23 and Supplementary Budget in 2021/22 
including:  

2.1.1 Draft Revenue Net Budget of £16.716m for 2022/23. 

2.1.2 The basic Somerset West and Taunton Band D Council Tax rate of £174.63 for 2022/23. 

2.1.3 General Fund 2022/23 Capital Programme additions totalling £1.158m and 2022/23 
Capital Programme Revisions of -£0.181m for previously approved schemes for 
2022/23, as set out in Table 18. 

2.1.4 A Supplementary Budget in 2021/22 of £1m for additional capital debt repayment funded 
from General Reserves. 
 

2.2 The Executive recommends delegating authority to the S151 Officer to approve the CIL 
capital grants budgets to reflect in-year CIL capital receipts passed to town and parishes 
in line with the CIL policy. 

3 Risk Assessment 

3.1 The Council is required to set a balanced budget. The S151 Officer’s detailed robustness 
statement will be included in the Executive and Full Council reports however the S151 Page 8



Officer’s view is that the draft budget in this report is robust and reserves are adequate. 

3.2 The main financial risks to highlight for the Budget are summarised below.  

3.3 COVID-19 Impact: The proposed budget has been prepared taking into account the 
effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. If further restrictions are imposed during 2022/23 this 
could have an impact on the Council’s income and expenditure and budgets.  

3.4 Inflation: Inflation rates are currently above the Government’s target of 2%. Whilst the 
budget allows for inflationary pressures there is a risk that costs of construction works 
and purchased goods and services continue to rise and place further pressure on 
revenue and capital budgets. This is further exacerbated through supply chain 
challenges, particularly in the construction and specialist trade sectors. The risks are 
mitigated through procurement and spend controls, and general reserves if revenue 
costs cannot be managed within existing total budgets.  

3.5 Staff pay award: The pay award for 2021/22 has not yet been agreed. The budget is 
based the Employer’s final offer of 1.75% for 2021/22 and assumes a 2% pay award in 
2022/23. For financial planning sensitivity analysis purposes, each 1% change in pay 
award equates to c£210k per year for the General Fund. This risk is mitigated through 
spending control and general reserves if costs cannot be managed within existing total 
budget. 

3.6 Parking income: The estimates included within the proposed 2022/23 budget reflect 
the current information available from 2020/21 and 2021/22 usage levels following the 
reduction in car park use due to COVID-19, with an estimated increase in use due to 
easing of restrictions. There is a risk to this income budget if further restrictions are 
imposed, and people habits change. For financial planning sensitivity analysis purposes, 
it is estimated there is a margin for error in income estimates of +/-£400k. Adverse risk 
is mitigated through general reserves. 

3.7 Other fees and charges: The proposed 2022/23 budget includes an estimated increase 
in income from the proposed increases to fees and charges due to be approved this 
month. If there is an impact on demand, then the income could vary by approximately 
£70k for a 1% reduction in fees (excluding car parking). Any adverse risk is mitigated 
through general reserves, where it cannot be managed within budget. 

3.8 Treasury investment income: The borrowing and investment strategies employed 
during the acquisition of commercial properties have protected the Council’s position 
whereby internal borrowing has been adopted in preference to obtaining now borrowing 
from the money markets.  The two primary benefits have been to minimise net interest 
costs for the Council in the short-term and reducing the risk of Council potential exposure 
to “bail-in”, that being the loss of capital investment because of the recovery processes 
employed in the event of a financial institution’s failure. With the completion of the 
commercial investment portfolio, cashflows has reduced and the dominating level of 
cashflow investments will switch to borrowing. As a result, risks aligned with movements 
in investment returns will substantially reduce with lower investment balances. To 
quantify this, we forecast (at the time of writing) that the remaining investments held 
during 2022/23 would carry a combined risk of variation in capital value and interest yield 
of approximately +/- £132k for a 1% movement in interest rates. These investment sums, 
which total approximately £17million, will be held as a contingency measure for 
unexpected cashflow movements and emergencies. Further liquid sums will also be held 
to accommodate the cashflow movements throughout the year; these attract a very low 
yield, so present negligible levels of interest rate volatility. Meanwhile, the Council’s Page 9



investment strategy and treasury operations do focus on preserving security, liquidity 
and yield as a basis for risk limitation. 

3.9 Property investment income: The Council has successfully completed its planned 
investment in commercial property to deliver income to fund services. Budgets are based 
on reasonable estimates of expected income for the year, net of management costs. 
Whilst income volatility is expected to be low, no investment is risk-free. For financial 
planning sensitivity analysis purposes, 5% adverse volatility would impact income by 
c£360k. This risk is mitigated through the Investment Risk Reserve.  

3.10 Interest rates and capital refinancing: The current treasury strategy is providing cost 
advantages with low cost of borrowing expected to remain in place for the short to 
medium term. However, it may be appropriate to refinancing some of the Council’s 
capital borrowing requirements into longer-term facilities and interest rate rises could 
lead to increased borrowing costs. For financial planning sensitivity analysis purposes, 
it is estimated interest / financing costs could vary by up to £650k in 2022/23 for a 1% 
increase in interest rates applied to the current forecast of General Fund borrowing 
needs. This risk is mitigated by prudent budgeting, effective treasury management with 
budget impact mitigated through general reserves. 

3.11 Business Rates Funding: Although Somerset West and Taunton are not within the 
Business Rates Pool in 2022/23 the Pool has agreed a gain share arrangement for next 
year. The amount will not be confirmed until year end, but the budget includes an income 
estimate of £250k. The risk is the actual receipt varies from budget based on outturn, 
with volatility estimated at -£150k to +£100k. Our core retained business rates funding 
volatility should be lower as we are at safety net in 2022/23, however funding through 
S31 grants is variable and the collection fund could still report a higher deficit in 2021/22 
and/or 2022/23. Overall volatility for 2021/22 and 2022/23 is unpredictable but prudently 
estimated to be +/-£500k. Business rates funding risk is underwritten through the 
Business Rates Volatility Reserve.  

3.12 Local Government Reorganisation: The proposed budget for 2022/23 includes 
£1.375m for Local Government Reorganisation, funded from General Reserves. As work 
progresses there could be further cost pressures which arise during the year. 

4 Background Information 

4.1 In October 2019 the Council agreed the Corporate Strategy which set out the Council’s 
priorities and vision for the next four years with four strategic themes: Our Environments 
and Economy; A transparent and customer focused Council; Homes and Communities; 
and An Enterprising Council. The budget seeks to allocate available resources to 
progress the priorities identified in the Strategy.  
 

4.2 The COVID-19 global pandemic continues to have a significant influence over the work 
of the Council and its resources. Most significantly in financial terms, there has been a 
major reduction in parking income with demand expected to remain well below pre-
COVID levels through into next financial year and beyond. 

  
4.3 The Financial Strategy was reviewed and agreed by the Executive on 21 July 2021.  
 
4.4 The General Fund Revenue Account is the Council’s main fund and shows the income 

and expenditure relating to the provision of services which residents, visitors and 
businesses all have access to including planning, environmental services, car parks, 
certain housing functions, community services and corporate services. 

Page 10



 
4.5 The Council directly charges individual consumers for some of its services through fees 

and charges. The expenditure that remains is mainly funded through a combination of 
local taxation (including council tax and a proportion of business rates), commercial 
investment income and through grant funding from Central Government (including 
Revenue Support Grant, New Homes Bonus and other non-ring-fenced and specific 
grants/subsidy).  
 

4.6 Each year the Council sets an annual budget which details the resources needed to 
meet operational requirements. The annual budget is prepared within the context of 
priorities and objectives identified by Members which are embedded in the Council’s 
current Corporate Strategy. 

 
4.7 The Financial Strategy agreed in July 2021, and the draft budget for 2022/23, set out the 

aim of maintaining capacity to protect services and minimising disruption during the 
transition to a new unitary council for Somerset, which is due to be formally created on 
1 April 2023, as well as continue to respond to the demands of COVID on our services 
and our communities. Local Government Restructuring (LGR) in Somerset will deliver a 
single unitary Council for Somerset with effect from 1 April 2023. All five councils are 
being asked to contribute to the implementation costs of LGR, and the draft budget also 
includes a modest provision for additional backfill capacity to support Somerset West 
and Taunton services and/or the LGR programme during 2022/23. 
 

4.8 The Draft Budget included in this report sets out a proposed overall balanced budget 
position for 2022/23, with resources available to meet estimated costs. However, this 
does rely on use of reserves which is not sustainable in the medium/longer term, but 
also includes significant one-off costs too. The draft budget also includes additional 
expenditure to meet identified cost pressures and bids to support new spending, as well 
significant savings as resources have been reprioritised in line with operational plans.  

4.9 The Provisional Finance Settlement was announced on 17 December 2021, which 
provides details of grant funding for one year only in 2022/23. The funding announced 
is an improvement of our previous estimates and assumptions, but still represents a real-
terms reduction. This is exacerbated with the expected drop in business rates retention 
funding to the Safety Net following the planned decommissioning of Hinkley B nuclear 
power station commencing in 2022. Overall, the Council’s funding is projected to fall 
sharply with ongoing uncertainty. 

4.10 The Final Finance Settlement is expected late January / early February. 

5 2022/23 Draft Budget Summary 

5.1 The following tables provide a summary of the proposed balanced draft budget position 
for 2022/23. A further breakdown of the Total Spending on Services is shown in 
Appendix A. 

Table 1 – General Fund Draft Budget Summary 

  
Original 
Budget 
2021/22 

£ 

 
Proposed 

Budget 
2022/23 

£ 

Senior Management Team 554,210 593,600 Page 11



  
Original 
Budget 
2021/22 

£ 

 
Proposed 

Budget 
2022/23 

£ 

Internal Operations Directorate 9,324,155 9,720,720 

Housing & Communities Directorate 3,028,290 3,233,680 

Development & Place Directorate 2,230,860 3,744,460 

External Operations & Climate Change Directorate 8,183,351 9,938,584 

Local Government Restructuring 0 1,375,000 

Technical Capital Accounting Adjustments -2,301,110 -3,332,420 

Net Total Spending on Services 21,019,756 25,273,624 
Investment Property Net Income -3,407,100 -7,239,960 
Somerset Rivers Authority Contribution 97,909 99,136 
Revenue Contribution to Capital 0 1,364,000 
Capital Debt Repayment Provision (MRP) 699,530 2,982,730 
Interest Costs 312,570 948,180 
Interest Income -514,500 -714,500 
Special Expenses 29,093 29,458 
Transfers to / from (-) Earmarked Reserves 1,665,036 -4,651,636 
Transfer to / from (-) General Reserves -1,159,562 -1,375,000 
Somerset West and Taunton Net Expenditure 18,742,732 16,716,032 
Parish Precepts 2,508,359 2,508,359* 

Total Expenditure Including Town/Parish Precepts 21,251,091 19,224,391 
Retained Business Rates  -6,181,661 -4,198,871 
Business Rates Pooling Gain -250,000 -250,000 
LCTS Grant -224,736 0 
Lower Tier Services Grant -995,611 -719,290 
Revenue Support Grant -6,479 -7,297 
Rural Services Delivery Grant -253,432 -253,432 
New Homes Bonus -1,743,222 -1,566,792 
Surplus(-)/Deficit on Collection Fund – Council Tax -7,785 76,379 
Surplus(-)/Deficit on Collection Fund – Business Rates 12,556,229 6,504,780 
Business Rates Relief (COVID) S31 Grant (earmarked 
reserves) 

-11,118,000 -5,482,789 

Business Rates Losses 2020/21 TIG S31 Grant (earmarked 
reserves) 

-998,505 -896,590 

Demand on Collection Fund – Parishes and Special Expenses -2,537,452 -2,537,817* 

Total Council Tax Raised by Council 9,490,437 9,892,672 
Divided by Council Tax Base 55,947.87 56,649.32 
Council Tax Band D – SWT Services 167.88 172.88 
Council Tax Band D – Somerset Rivers Authority 1.75 1.75 

Council Tax Band D – SWT including SRA 169.63 174.63 

Cost per week per Band D equivalent 3.25 3.35 

*The final total for parish precepts in 2022/23 is not yet confirmed pending receipt of all 
demands. This will be updated for the Full Council report. 

5.2 The tables below show the movement in spending and funding for each Directorate 
between 2021/22 and 2022/23. 

Senior Management Team: 

5.3 This budget line holds the costs of the Chief Executive and four directors, a contingency Page 12



to support strategic priorities in-year. 
 

5.4 The Senior Management Team budget reflects the uplift as the salary award as offered 
by the employers. It reflects the existing structure and so budgets for the Director of 
External Operations and Climate Change role, that vacancy being the subject of ongoing 
discussions to ensure senior leadership capacity. 

Table 2 – Summary of Senior Management Team Budget Changes in 2022/23 

 £’000 £’000 

Net Expenditure Base Budget 2021/22  554 

   

Service Cost Savings:  0 

Service Cost Pressures:   

Staffing Increase 39  

  39 

Net Expenditure Base Budget 2022/23  593 

 
Internal Operations: 

 
5.5 The Internal Operations Directorate has responsibility to provide support and advice 

across all Council functions through its enabling services of ICT, HR, Finance, Business 
Intelligence, Democratic and Elections. It also oversees services that directly support the 
local community and residents contacting the Council, for example in Customer Services 
and Revenues and Benefits. In 2019/20, the Directorate became responsible for 
assessing and prioritising initiatives in business transformation to deliver efficiency in 
service provision across the Council. 

 
5.6 Budget setting for this year has been influenced by a realignment of activities in line with 

Local Government Reorganisation activity which has produced both budget reduction 

and increases. For example, savings in ICT non pay budgets have been achieved due 

to forward planned projects being deprioritised however staffing costs have increased to 

support not only unitary needs but also critical projects such as the Health and Safety 

Improvement Plan.  

 

Table 3 – Summary of Internal Operations Budget Changes in 2022/23 

 £’000 £’000 

Net Expenditure Base Budget 2021/22   9,324 

Service Cost Savings:   

Remove 2021/22 One-off review of Council Tax Support Scheme -19  

Other savings with the Benefits Service -29  

Reduction in Members travel/training and meeting costs -13  

Reduction in ICT non pay budgets  -185  

Family Annexe Grant -39  

Service Improvement and Efficiency Savings -200  

Fees and Charges Income – Court Costs and Deane Helpline -86  

Communications/Economic Development Budget moved to 
Development and Place 

-141  

Other Savings -7  

  -719 

Service Cost Pressures:   

Increase in Staffing Costs 625  Page 13



 £’000 £’000 

Health and Safety 28  

Increase in postage costs and other business support 58  

Increase in Members Allowances 10  

Contract Increases 41  

Increase in Pension Deficit contribution 66  

Increase in Depreciation Charges 204  

Other Costs 84  

  1,116 

Net Expenditure Base Budget 2022/23  9,721 

 
Housing and Communities: 

 
5.7 The Housing and Communities Directorate provides homelessness and rough sleeping, 

community resilience, housing strategy and enabling services funded by the General 
Fund, alongside some corporate asset related services such as compliance.  These 
General Fund services sit alongside the larger Housing Landlord functions funded by the 
Housing Revenue Account. 
 

5.8 Housing and Communities savings and budget changes are derived from an over 
provision of budget for Shopmobility, this will not impact the level of service or funding 
to the provider (Compass Disability), and by three posts transferring out of the 
Directorate predominantly working on GF assets so have moved to the new GF Asset 
team from Housing Property. 

Staffing cost pressures and adjustments result in a £100k net increase, including inflation 
of £94k and adjustment to GF/HRA split of £89k.  

The increase in homelessness cost reflects the required provision of new  
 accommodation and associated revenue costs to replace Canonsgrove, however 
this will be funded from transfer from earmarked reserve. 

The cost pressure on the CCTV budget is largely a result of a one-off budget reduction 
in 2021/22 (affordable as our maintenance budget had accumulated beyond its 
 requirement) and the budget being reinstated in 2022/23 (albeit at a reduced 
level, there is still a net increase). 
 
The increase within the Housing Enabling Budget is to correct a previous budget error. 
 
Table 4 – Summary of Housing and Communities Budget Changes in 2022/23 

 £’000 £’000 

Net Expenditure Base Budget 2021/22  3,028 

   

Service Cost Savings:   

Shopmobility Contribution no longer required -32  

Assets Staff transferred to External Operations and Climate Change -75  

  -107 

Service Cost Pressures:   

Increase in Staffing Costs 118  

Increase in Homelessness (funded by transfer from earmarked 
reserve) 

113  

Increase in CCTV contribution 56  Page 14



 £’000 £’000 

Housing Enabling  20  

Other Costs 6  

  313 

Net Expenditure Base Budget 2022/23  3,234 

 
Development and Place: 

 
5.9 The Development and Place Directorate delivers a range of services and projects 

including strategy and policy development, planning services, economic development, 
town centre regeneration, heritage projects and major capital projects for regeneration. 
The Directorate also manages the commercial investment activity though the budget for 
this is included below the net cost of services.  

5.10 Movement in the Development and Place budget include increases in staffing costs as 
are seen throughout the organisation. 

Savings have been established through effective budget management and removal of 
budgets where they are no longer required helping to offset some of the increases. 

New cost pressures are recorded to reflect the reduction of planning income and 
increased costs to support services the evidence base for a new Local plan, an 
innovation conference in 2022 as supported by Members, and our work on phosphates. 
These are staff costs that cannot be recovered through S106 agreements with 
developers and therefore cannot be absorbed within the phosphates interim mitigation 
funding provided by Council in October 2021. 

The £141k increase for Communications and Economic Development is offset by the 
equivalent saving within Internal Operations and recognises the movement of this team 
across directorates. This is not therefore a new or increased cost overall. Similarly, the 
£69k change for Planning obligations is offset by the saving in the External Operations 
and Climate Change budget. 

The Environmental and Leisure Improvements Fund will enable us to deliver on a range 
of longstanding but unbudgeted issues. This is a one off fund that follows on from the 
previous successes of the Spring Clean. 

Table 5 – Summary of Development and Place Budget Changes in 2022/23 

 £’000 £’000 

Net Expenditure Base Budget 2021/22  2,231 

   

Service Cost Savings:   

Reduction in Heritage feasibility and one-off abortive costs   -57  

Other savings -7  

  -64 

Service Cost Pressures:   

Increase in Staffing Costs 646  

Local Plan Costs  50  

Innovation Conference 50  

Phosphates – additional cost for planning specialist role 50  

Planning – reduction in income 28  

Page 15



 £’000 £’000 

Communications/Economic Development Budget moved from 
Internal Operations 

141  

Increase in Depreciation Charges 235  

Planning Obligations budget moved from External Operations and 
Climate Change 

69  

Environmental and Leisure Improvements Fund (one-off) 300  

Other Costs 8  

  1,577 

Net Expenditure Base Budget 2022/23  3,744 

 
External Operations and Climate Change: 

 
5.11 The External Operations and Climate Change Directorate is a forward-facing directorate 

that provides or clients many the services delivered by Somerset West and Taunton 
Council. It also leads on the Council’s climate and ecological emergency declarations. 
  

5.12 The Net Expenditure invested in External Operations and Climate Change is increased 
from £8.2m to £9.9m in 2022/23. Against a backdrop of year-on-year efficiency savings 
and service improvement the impact of lost car parking revenue masks the true picture. 
That picture is one where concepts have been turned into delivery (e.g., CNCR Plan), 
medium to long term planning rigour adopted (e.g., 30-year General Fund maintenance 
programme) and costs reduced (e.g., Fleet contract).  

The budget reflects an estimated reduction of almost £1.5m in parking income compared 
to historic trends pre-COVID, aligning the 2022/23 budget with current usage. 

The directorate budget includes a further £500k allocation in 2022/23 to support the 
CNCR Plan and related climate change initiatives. This means a total of £1.5m has been 
allocated to support the delivery of this priority over a 3-year period 2020/21 to 2022/23. 

Table 6 – Summary of External Operations and Climate Change Budget Changes in 
2022/23 

 £’000 £’000 

Net Expenditure Base Budget 2021/22  8,183 

   

Service Cost Savings:   

2021/22 One-off Tree Planting -100  

2021/22 One-off Community Enhancement Fund -100  

2021/22 One-off Car Park Strategy -53  

Bereavement Services – increase in rental income -18  

Increase in Asset rents (non-investment) -278  

Reduction in Fleet Costs -180  

Reduction in Asset Management budget to fund contribution to 
capital for Closed Church Yards and Brewhouse Roof 

-100  

Reduction in Non-Domestic Rates for Council Properties -109  

Fees and Charges Income -95  

Planning Obligations budget moved to Development and Place -69  

Other Savings -138  

  -1,240 

Service Cost Pressures:   Page 16



 £’000 £’000 

Increase in Staffing Costs 257  

Car Parking Income – reduction of approximately 25% on historic 
levels 

1,476  

Litter Enforcement 12-Month trial 60  

Somerset Waste Partnership contract increase (net of Recycle More 
Savings of £125k) 

149  

Somerset Waste Partnership - contractors COVID costs to be 
funded from COVID funding 

172  

Town Centre Power Wash - one-off 25  

Town Centres Spring Clean - one off 30  

Contract Increases 43  

Decrease in Licensing Income 90  

Increase in CCTV contribution 16  

Assets Staff transferred from Housing 75  

Increase in Depreciation Charges 592  

Other Costs 10  

  2,995 

Net Expenditure Base Budget 2022/23  9,938 

 
Local Government Reorganisation: 

 
5.13 The Councils in Somerset have agreed to share the implementation costs for the 

creation of the Somerset unitary authority, estimated at £16.5m in the One Somerset 
Business Case. As agreed by the LGR Joint Committee, the District Councils will 
contribute 20%, which for Somerset West and Taunton’s share equates to c£0.9m and 
it is proposed to budget for £1m including a contingency sum.  
 

5.14 In addition, it is anticipated there will be major demands on Somerset West and Taunton 
resources that will need additional capacity and backfill in key areas (e.g., legal / 
governance, finance and many forward-facing services) therefore it is proposed to 
include budget provision of £0.375m to meet this need should it arise. The aim is to keep 
costs to a minimum with most transitional work delivered within existing management 
and staff resources through prioritisation of activity.  
 

5.15 This total of £1.375m additional costs are one-off and are proposed to be funded by a 
one-off allocation from General Reserves (see section 13 below). A proportion of the 
implementation costs are expected to be incurred in 2023/24 and it is assumed a balance 
of the £1m will therefore be carried forward at the end of 2022/23. 

Table 7- Summary of Local Government Reorganisation Budget Changes in 2022/23 

 £’000 £’000 

Net Expenditure Base Budget 2021/22  0 

Cost Pressures:   

Somerset West and Taunton share of implementation budget 1,000  

Somerset West and Taunton provision for additional 
transition/backfill capacity 

375  

  1,375 

Net Expenditure Base Budget 2022/23  1,375 

 
Other Costs, Reserve Transfers and Funding: 
 Page 17



5.16 Other Costs, Reserve Transfers and Funding includes Commercial Investment income, 
Debt Management Costs, Technical Capital Accounting Adjustments, the precept costs 
for Somerset Rivers Authority, Special Expenses and the Parishes and the Funding 
streams.  
 

5.17 Section 6-11 below explain the major changes to government funding, business rates, 
new homes bonus, council tax and the somerset rivers authority and special expenses 
precepts. 

Details on the use of reserves are within Section 13 and 14 below 

The capital programme below in section 17 proposes to use revenue resources to 
 fund the 2022/23 bids and the table below reflects this cost. 

Table 8 – Summary of Other Costs and Reserves Budget Changes in 2022/23 

 £’000 £’000 

Net Expenditure Base Budget 2021/22  -2,069 

   

Cost Savings:   

Increase in Interest Income -200  

Commercial Investment - Reduction in Management Fee -130  

Commercial Investment – net increase in income -3,750  

Increase in Depreciation Adjustment -1,031  

  -5,111 

Cost Pressures:   

Increase in Interest Costs 636  

Revenue contribution to fund capital programme 1,364  

Increase in Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) for debt 
repayment 

2,283  

Commercial Investment – reduction in legacy properties rental 
income and inflation costs 

47  

Change in Parish Precepts TBC  

  4,330 

Reserve Movements:   

Reduction in contribution from General Reserves 1,160  

One-off Contribution from General Reserves to fund LGR costs -1,375  

Contribution from Investment Financing Earmarked Reserve in 
22/23 

-2,000  

Change in Contribution from Business Rates Reserve -2,385  

Contribution from reserves towards Local Plan -94  

Contribution from reserves COVID grant for SWP COVID costs -172  

Contribution from reserves towards Leisure contract deferred 
savings 

-135  

Contribution from reserves towards Homelessness -113  

Contribution from reserves towards funding of capital schemes -1,087  

Contribution from reserves towards one-off staffing costs -330  

  -6,531 

Net Expenditure Base Budget 2022/23  -9,381 

 
Table 9 – Summary of Funding Changes in 2022/23 

 £’000 £’000 

Total Funding 2021/22  -21,251 Page 18



 £’000 £’000 

   

Decrease in New Homes Bonus Grant 176  

Decrease in Lower Tier Services Grant  546  

Local Council Tax Support Grant one-off 2021/22 only 225  

Services Grant -270  

Increase in Revenue Support Grant -1  

Increase in Council Tax Deficit from Prior Years 84  

Increase in funding from Council Tax for Somerset Rivers Authority -1  

Net increased funding from Council Tax for Somerset West and 
Taunton 

-401  

Reduction in Business Rates Funding -1,983  

Reduction in Business Rates Prior Year Deficit -6,052  

Reduction in use of Business Rates Holiday S31 Grant 5,636  

Reduction in use of Business Rates Losses S31 Grant 102  

Change in Parish Precepts TBC  

  2,027 

Total Funding 2022/23  -19,224 

 
5.18 The following table provides a high level summary of the contribution to the budget made 

by the Council’s commercial property investment strategy. As the table shows the 
investment now provides a significant source of income. This has added to, and 
therefore diversified, the Council’s income streams and helps to mitigate the reductions 
in other funding and enables ongoing provision of service priorities. The table includes 
the budgeted income from £99m invested since August 2020 plus that from legacy 
assets acquired before the current investment strategy commenced. There is a separate 
report providing full details of the strategy and investment performance.  

  
2022/23  

£000  
2023/24 

£000 

Rent Income from 2021 Investment Fund -6,930 -6,930 

Management Costs  150 150 

Legacy Assets Net Income -460 -460 

Investment Income  -7,240 -7,240 

Less: Notional Interest Charge [included within Net Financing 
Costs in MTFP summary Table 16 below] 

750 1,500 

Less: Minimum Revenue Provision for Capital Debt 
Repayment [included within Net Financing Costs in MTFP 
summary Table 16 below] 

2,000 2,000 

Investment Income Net of Financing Costs  -4,490 -3,740 

Contribution to Investment Reserves [included within Earmarked 
Reserves in MTFP summary Table 16 below] 

0 380 

Net Contribution to Revenue Budget  -4,490 -3,360 

 
5.19 The table shows that the Council’s property investment activity, including assets held for 

many years plus the increase in acquisitions since 2020, is providing total estimated 
income of some £7.2m. This income provides resources to cover the capital financing 
costs – debt repayment plus interest on borrowing – and results in an estimated net 
contribution to the revenue budget to fund service costs totalling £4.5m in 2022/23. This 
is estimated to reduce to £3.4m in 2023/24 with prudent budget allowance included in 
the MTFP for potential higher interest costs in future and prudent reserve provisions to Page 19



manage ongoing risks.  
 

6 Government Grant Funding 

6.1 Following the Provisional Settlement in December 2021 the general grant funding is 
slightly higher than previous MTFP projections. The Revenue Support Grant (RSG) in 
2022/23 is £7,297 and Rural Services Delivery Grant is £253,432, which together is £818 
higher than the 2021/22 settlement level. Government has confirmed that ‘Negative’ 
Revenue Support Grant will again be offset in 2022/23. 
 

6.2 Through the Provisional Settlement the Government has sought to ensure that no local 
authority sees a cash reduction in their estimated core funding settlement in 2022/23, 
reflecting the need for funding stability for local services. This was unexpected and 
provides welcome one-off additional unringfenced revenue grant, although as shown in 
the table below the total amount of additional general grant support received has 
reduced by over £1.3m compared to 2021/22.  
 
Table 10 – General Government Grant 

 2021/22 
£ 

2022/23 
£ 

Change 
£ 

Change
% 

Core Funding: 
Revenue Support Grant 
Rural Services Delivery Grant 

 
6,479 

253,432 

 
7,297 

253,432 

 
818 

0 

 
12.63 

0 

Total General Revenue Grant 259,911 260,729 818 0.00 

Additional one-off support: 
a) Lower Tier Services Grant 
b) Local Council Tax Support Grant 
c) COVID Pressures Grant 
d) Services Grant 

 
995,611 
224,736 
813,217 

0 

 
449,688 

0 
0 

269,603 

 
-545,923 
-224,736 
-813,217 
269,603 

 
-5.48 

-100.00 
-100.00 
100.00 

Total Additional Grant Funding 2,033,564 719,291 -1,314,273 -64.63 

 
(a) Lower Tier Services Grant – the Government has confirmed a further one-off grant 

of £449,688 to ensure there is no cash reduction in ‘core spending power’ compared 
to 2021/22. 

(b) Local Council Tax Support Grant – this was a one-off grant for 2021/22 only and 
there is no allocation for 2022/23 within the Provisional Settlement. 

(c) COVID Grant – the COVID grant was a one-off grant for 2021/22 only and therefore 
there is no allocation for 2022/23. 

(d) Services Grant – the Government have confirmed a further one-off grant of 
£269,603 to ensure there is no cash reduction in ‘core spending power’ compared to 
2021/22. 
 

6.3 All of the above funding is unringfenced revenue grant funding which goes towards 
general funding of services in the Budget. 

7 Business Rates Retention 

7.1 Local authorities receive a significant proportion of their funding through the Business 
Rates Retention (BRR) system. For 2022/23 Somerset West and Taunton is not within 
the Somerset Business Rates Pool due to the reduction in business rates funding 
expected and adverse impact on the balance of risk and reward to pooling this brings. 
Up until 2021/22 the pooling arrangement has been beneficial for Somerset West and 
Taunton and the other pool member authorities. Page 20



 
7.2 The Provisional Finance Settlement in December 2021 confirmed the baseline, safety 

net and tariff for 2022/23. In order to support businesses, there will be no inflationary 
increase in business rates bills, with Somerset West and Taunton receiving grant from 
Government to compensate the loss of funding through this ‘freeze’. Local estimates for 
total business rates income are not yet completed at the time of writing the report and 
are due to be completed by the end of January 2021. These will determine the net 
income retained by Somerset West and Taunton including growth above the baseline. 

 
7.3 A summary of the 2022/23 Retained Funding current estimate is shown in the table 

below. This will be updated following completion of the NNDR1 at the end of January 
2022. 

 
Table 11 – Business Rates Retention Provisional Estimates 

Business Rates Retention Provisional Funding Estimates 

2022/23 
Provisional 
Estimates 

£ 

Share of Business Rates Yield 19,406,200 

Rates yield from renewable energy  169,410 

Tariff to Government -18,763,399 

Levy Payment 0 

Safety Net Income 778,780 

S31 Grant funding for Reliefs 2,607,880 

Net Retained Business Rates Funding 4,198,871 

 
7.4 Although Somerset West and Taunton is exiting the Somerset Business Rates Pool at 

the end of 2021/22, the continuing Pool members have agreed to provide a contribution 
to Somerset West and Taunton from 2022/23 pooling gains in recognition of the 
reduction in pooling risk because of Somerset West and Taunton exiting. The proposed 
budget includes an estimated pooling gain contribution of £250k. 

7.5 The Council’s funding through business rates is expected to reduce to the Safety Net 
due to the planned decommissioning by EDF of Hinkley B power station commencing 
by July 2022. This has a major impact on the level of retained business rates funding 
available to the Council with BRR funding estimates falling by c£1.9m per year as a 
result. There will then be a gap of several years before business rates funding is 
expected to grow when Hinkley C comes into operation. There is a financial planning 
risk though as Government is still committed to reviewing business rates retention and 
relative needs and resources funding distribution.  

7.6 Due to the continuing support to businesses the Business Rates budget in 2022/23 still 
includes a spike in collection fund losses due to COVID, which is to be reimbursed by 
the General Fund next year due to accounting regulations. The Council will receive 
government funding through S31 Grant to fully compensate losses in respect of the 
business rates holiday 100% reliefs for April-July and 66% for August -March in 2021/22.  

8 New Homes Bonus 

8.1 New Homes Bonus (NHB) is grant funding allocated by Government, separate to 
Revenue Support Grant and Business Rates, which incentivises and rewards housing 
growth. The NHB grant is non-ringfenced which means that the Council is free to decide Page 21



how to use it. The Council intends to fully use the NHB allocation for 2022/23 towards 
the revenue budget for services. 
 

8.2 The confirmed NHB Grant for 2022/23 is £1,566,792 which is £176,430 or 10.12% less 
than the comparable amount for 2021/22. 
 
Table 12 – New Homes Bonus 2022/23 

 2020/21 
£ 

2021/22 
£ 

2022/23 
£ 

New Homes Bonus Grant 3,253,289 1,743,222 1,566,792 

Amount for core revenue budget 400,000 1,743,222 1,566,792 

Transfer to growth reserve 2,853,289 0 0 

 
8.3 The growth baseline remains at 0.4%, which sees a “top-slice” for net growth which does 

not attract any NHB grant. This is a surprise given the strong indications in the 
Government’s 2021 consultation of a reduction in the level of ‘reward’ for growth. Each 
year’s growth used to attract grant for 4 years but the annual growth ‘increment’ in 
2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23 is each for one year only with no legacy payments. Table 
13 below shows the current forecast within the current MTFP. The Government 
undertook a consultation in 2021 for the NHB system but they have not yet issued a 
formal response and the 2022/23 provisional settlement therefore continues the grant 
method for another year. The MTFP assumes no NHB grant funding after 2022/23, in 
the absence of reliable information upon which to base an estimate. 

 
Table 13 – New Homes Bonus Grant Forecast 

  2019/20 
£k 

2020/21 
£k 

2021/22 
£k 

2022/23 
£k 

2023/24 
£k 

2024/25 
£k 

2016/17 841      

2017/18 1,258 1,258     

2018/19 858 858 858    

2019/20 851 851 851 851   

2020/21  286     

2021/22   34    

2022/23    716   

Total 3,808 3,253 1,743 1,567 0 0 

 
9 Council Tax 

9.1 The Provisional Finance Settlement has confirmed that Shire Districts are able to 
increase council tax by up to the greater of 1.99% or £5 (on a Band D) in 2022/23 without 
the need for a referendum.  
 

9.2 The Executive recommends the option to increase annual Band D Council Tax to 
£172.88 for Somerset West and Taunton services, which equates to the £5 annual 
increase on the current Somerset West and Taunton rate of £167.88, and this is reflected 
in the proposed budget for 2022/23. If approved by Council, the Somerset West and 
Taunton total Band D tax rate including £1.75 for the Somerset Rivers Authority will be 
£174.63 per year or £3.35 per week. This represents an increase of 2.95% - 10 pence 
per week for a Band D taxpayer. 
 

9.3 The approved Tax Base for 2022/23 is 56,649.32 Band D Equivalents, an increase of 
701.45 (1.25%) compared to the 2021/22 tax base. The main reasons for the tax base Page 22



increasing are housing growth, a fall in demand for council tax support discount, and a 
small reduction in the non-collection rate. The budget estimates for Council Tax income 
for Somerset West and Taunton is therefore £56,649.32 x £172.88 = £9,793,535. This 
represents a total increase of £401,007 compared to the previous year. The budget 
estimates are calculated as follows. 
 £ 
Council Tax Income Budget 2021/22 9,392,528 
Increase due to change in Tax Base (Band D equivalents) 117,760 
Increase due to proposed increase in Tax Rate 283,247 

Council Tax Income Estimate 2022/23 9,793,535 

Amount raised for Somerset Rivers Authority (see below) 99,136 

Overall Total Somerset West and Taunton Council Tax Precept  9,892,671 

 
9.4 The Somerset West and Taunton council tax charge represents around 10% of the full 

council tax bills for households, which also includes precepts for the county council, 
police and fire authorities, and local town and parish councils. Details of the full range of 
council tax charges will be included in the Council Tax Determination report to Council 
on 24 February 2022.  

 
10 Somerset Rivers Authority 

10.1 The Somerset Rivers Authority (SRA) remains unable to raise its own precept and it is 
therefore proposed to follow the same arrangements as previous years. For 2022/23 it 
is proposed that the Band D amount will remain at £1.75 and this will raise £99,136 in 
funding for the SRA from the Council in 2022/23. 

11 Special Expenses/Unparished Area Budget 

11.1 From 2020/21 the Charter Trustees have been required to precept directly for the 
mayoralty and related civic costs plus their own governance/admin costs. The Council 
has also maintained an element of special expenses for the unparished area related to 
local service costs that a town/parish might provide if in existence but is beyond the 
scope of the Charter Trustees. 

11.2 The Executive propose to precept £29,458 in special expenses for the Unparished Area 
of Taunton in 2022/23 (2021/22 = £29,093). This results in an annual council tax rate at 
£1.93 for a Band D for the Unparished Area of Taunton. (Note: For referendum purposes 
we must measure this as though it is a charge for the whole area, which equates to £0.52 
for Band D.) 

12 Fees and Charges 

12.1 The Council’s Constitution delegates the approval of Fees and Charges (except for Car 
Parks) to the S151 Officer. Therefore, the increase in all other fees and charges is due 
to be approved by the S151 Officer in January 2021, in consultation with SMT and 
Portfolio Holders. Fees and charges are set on the principles of full cost recovery where 
appropriate or an inflationary increase in line with the financial strategy approved by the 
Executive. 
 

13 General Reserves 

13.1 The current reserves position is shown below.  The provisional forecast of the reserves 
position at the start of the next financial year at £5.793m. Page 23



 
13.2 Following the improved funding position in the Settlement for 2022/23, it is proposed to 

use £1m no longer required from reserves to make an additional capital debt repayment 
in the current financial year 2021/22. This prudently reduces the overall General Fund 
borrowing requirement and reduces future debt financing costs (see 16.5 below). 
 

13.3 The draft Budget also plans to use £1.375m of reserves to fund one-off costs in 2022/23 
reducing the projected General Reserves balance to £3.418m. The S151 Officer will 
complete the assessment of recommended minimum reserves in January and include 
his recommendation in the budget report to the Executive in February. Using any more 
General Reserves towards balancing the budget moving forward is not sustainable in 
the medium term.  
 

Table 14 – General Reserves Balance 
 Approval £k 

Balance brought forward 1 April 2021  7,914 

2021/22 Original Budget Transfer to Reserve Council – 18/02/21 -1,160 

Supplementary Budget - Local Poll Council – 04/05/21 -86 

Supplementary Budget - Phosphates Executive – 21/07/21 -200 

Supplementary Budget - Health & Safety Executive – 21/07/21 -126 

Supplementary Budget - Parks & Open Spaces Executive – 21/07/21 -100 

Supplementary Budget - Asset Management Executive – 21/07/21 -150 

Supplementary Budget - Asset Management Compliance Executive – 21/07/21 -100 

Supplementary Budget - Revenues Service Capacity Executive – 21/07/21 -130 

Supplementary Budget - Business Intelligence Capacity SMT – 23/06/21 -50 

Supplementary Budget - Project Management Resources Director/S151– 15/07/21 -19 

Projected Balance after current commitments  5,793 

Recommended Supplement Budget – Debt Repayment   -1,000 

Projected Balance 31 March 2022  4,793 

MTFP Planned use of reserves for LGR   -1,375 

Projected uncommitted balance  3,418 

Current Recommended Minimum Balance (to be 
reviewed in January to consider current financial and 
budget risks) 

 2,400 

 
13.4 Although reserves are currently projected to be above the minimum reserves balance, 

Members are advised that significant financial risks remain not least the transition to the 
unitary council and the need to ongoing financial sustainability measures in future. It is 
strongly recommended by the S151 Officer that reserves are maintained above the 
recommended minimum to provide flexibility and resilience in this context. 
 

14 Earmarked Reserves 

14.1 The budgeted transfers from earmarked reserves in 2022/23 totals £4.652m towards net 
expenditure, funding £2.056m in one-off costs and £2.596m in ongoing budgeted costs. 
In addition, due to accounting timing of the Collection Fund Deficit from prior years, the 
budget also includes £6.379m of earmarked Business Rates Deferred S31 Grants.  

 
14.2 The following table details the use of earmarked reserves for 2022/23. 

Page 24



 
Table 15 – Proposed General Fund Earmarked Reserves Transfers 2022/23 

 
2022/23 Budgeted 

Transfers 
£’000 

Funding One-Off Costs:   

BRR – Offsetting Collection Fund Deficit -125  

Funding the Capital Programme -1,087  

Funding one-off service costs -844  

One-off costs funded from reserves  -2,056 

Funding ongoing costs:   

Investment financing -2,000  

BRR – Supporting the budget -596  

Ongoing costs funded from reserves  -2,596 

Net Expenditure Funded by Earmarked Reserves  -4,652 

   

BRR Deferred S31 Grant to fund Collection Fund Deficit  -6,379 

 
14.3 A table of earmarked reserves projected movements and balances over £500k is 

included within Appendix B.  
 

15 Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) Summary 

15.1 The current MTFP forecast is summarised below and is set out covering a 3-year period 
up to 2023/24.  

15.2 The Budget for 2022/23 will be the final budget for Somerset West and Taunton with its 
services and functions transferring to the new unitary council for Somerset on 1 April 
2023. Forecasting for 2023/24 is indicative only in this context, based on Somerset West 
and Taunton continuing in its current form. It is not clear what the impact of moving to 
the unitary will mean for funding, and we do not yet have a provisional finance settlement 
for 2023/24 on which to base estimates. It is therefore prudently assumed one-off 
allocations in the 2022/23 finance settlement will not continue into the following year. 
Costs and income will also be rolled into unitary council budgets and be updated 
according to the design and priorities of the new council including any savings that the 
unitary may deliver on its first year. However, it is important to recognise that there is a 
significant deficit forecast for 2023/24 on current projections despite these uncertainties, 
placing an immediate challenge for the unitary council’s financial strategy and planning.  

Table 16 - Draft MTFP Summary 2020/21 to 2023/24 

  
  

2021/22 
Original Feb 

2021 
£ 

2021/22 
Revised July 

2021 
£ 

Proposed 
2022/23 

£ 

Indicative 
2023/24 

£ 

Net Services Costs 21,019,756 21,019,755 25,273,624 22,534,531 

Investment Property Net Income -3,407,100 -5,562,100 -7,239,960 -7,239,960 

Net Financing Costs 497,600 1,902,600 4,580,410 4,376,020 

SRA Contribution 97,909 97,909 99,136 100,128 

Special Expenses 29,093 29,093 29,458 29,742 

Earmarked Reserves 1,665,036 2,415,307 -4,651,636 -54,750 

General Reserves -1,159,562 -1,159,562 -1,375,000 0 

Net Expenditure 18,742,732 18,742,732 16,716,032 19,745,721 Page 25



  
  

2021/22 
Original Feb 

2021 
£ 

2021/22 
Revised July 

2021 
£ 

Proposed 
2022/23 

£ 

Indicative 
2023/24 

£ 

Retained Business Rates  -6,181,661 -6,181,661 -4,198,871 -4,281,362 

Business Rates prior year surplus/deficit 12,556,229 12,556,229 6,504,780 1,331,340 

Business Rates Holiday S31 Grant -11,118,000 -11,118,000 -5,482,789 0 

Business Rates Losses S31 Grant -998,505 -998,505 -896,590 -896,590 

Estimated Pooling Gain -250,000 -250,000 -250,000 0 

LCTS Grant -224,736 -224,736 0 0 

Lower Tier Services Grant -995,611 -995,611 -449,688 0 

Services Grant 0 0 -269,603  

Revenue Support Grant -6,479 -6,479 -7,297 -7,297 

Rural Services Delivery Grant -253,432 -253,432 -253,432 -253,432 

New Homes Bonus -1,743,222 -1,743,222 -1,566,792 0 

Council Tax -9,392,528 -9,392,528 -9,793,535 -10,090,582 

Council Tax–SRA -97,909 -97,909 -99,136 -100,128 

Council Tax–Special Expenses -29,093 -29,093 -29,458 -29,742 

Council Tax prior year surplus/deficit -7,785 -7,785 76,379 76,379 

Net Funding  -18,742,732 -18,742,732 -16,716,032 -14,251,424 

Budget Gap 0 0 0 5,494,297 

Gap – Change on Previous Year 0 0 0 5,494,297 

Note: The 2021/22 figures in this table show both the Budget approved in February 2021 and the 
adjusted Budget to reflect the changes approved in the Financial Strategy by the Executive in July 2021. 
 

16 2021/22 General Fund Capital Programme and Funding 

16.1 The current General Fund Capital Programme in 2021/22 includes approved projects 
totalling £78.5m summarised in the table below with the full list of projects shown in 
Appendix C. Additionally, Council has approved further capital investment in future years 
including regeneration and properties for yield. 

Table 17a - Summary of Existing Capital Approvals 

Capital Expenditure   

Total 
Capital 
Budget 
£000's 

Forecast 
2021/22 
£000's 

Forecast 
2022/23 
£000's 

Forecast 
2023/24 
£000's 

Forecast 
2024/25 
£000's 

Total 
Forecast 

Expenditure 
£000's 

Development and Place  145,263 68,261 31,309 37,755 7,938 145,263 

External Operations  9,454 5,614 3,841 0 0 9,454 

Housing & Communities 5,762 1,853 1,761 1,089 1,059 5,762 

Internal Operations 2,110 1,680 430 0 0 2,110 

Hinkley Capital Schemes 857 857 0 0 0 857 

S106 Capital Schemes 702 203 499 0 0 702 

Total  164,148 78,468 37,839 38,844 8,997 164,148 

 
Table 17b Financing of Existing Capital Approvals 

Capital 
Expenditure 

Capital 
Grants 

CIL 
£000's 

Capital 
Grants 
Other 
£000's 

Section 
106 

Agree-
ments 
£000's 

Capital 
Receipts 

£000's 

General 
Fund 
RCCO 
£000's 

Capital 
Funding 
Reserve 
£000's 

Borrowing 
£000's 

Total 
Capital 

Financing 
£000's 

Development 
and Place 

13,166  14,157 632 745  0 0 116,563  145,263  

Page 26



Capital 
Expenditure 

Capital 
Grants 

CIL 
£000's 

Capital 
Grants 
Other 
£000's 

Section 
106 

Agree-
ments 
£000's 

Capital 
Receipts 

£000's 

General 
Fund 
RCCO 
£000's 

Capital 
Funding 
Reserve 
£000's 

Borrowing 
£000's 

Total 
Capital 

Financing 
£000's 

External 
Operations 

0 5,043 0 2,154  195  0 2,062  9,454  

Housing & 
Communities 

0 4,812 456 385  0   109  0   5,762  

Internal 
Operations 

0 0 0 1,182  0   20  908  2,110  

Hinkley 
Capital 
Schemes 

0 85 0 0 0 0 0 857  

S106 Capital 
Schemes 

0 0 702 0 0 0 0 702  

Total 13,166  24,870  1,790  4,466  195 129 119,533 164,148  

 
16.2 There have been a number of bids for the General Fund Capital Programme (shown in 

Table 18 below). These have been prioritised on the grounds that they remedy health 
and safety risk, deliver essential asset maintenance and essential assets for service 
delivery. The total cost of bids to be considered is £1.158m. In addition, some of the 
recurring schemes for 2022/23 approved in February 2021 have been reviewed and 
reduced by £181k giving an overall increased proposal of £977k. 

 
16.3 It is intended to avoid increasing the borrowing requirements for General Fund schemes 

when financing the proposals for 2022/23 new bids. It is proposed to finance this capital 
investment through prioritising revenue budget and reserves plus using S106 
contributions towards affordable housing schemes.  
 

Table 18 – Capital Bids and Proposed Funding 

 Current 
Approval 

£ 

Capital 
Bids/ 

Returns 
2022/23 

£ 

Revised/ 
Proposed 
2022/23 
Budget 

£ 

Financed By: 

 Revenue 
£ 

 S106 

£ 

Total 
Financing 

£ 

Budget Changes:       

External Operations       

Leisure Grants to 
Clubs and Parishes 

15,000 -15,000 0 0  -15,000 

Play Equipment 
Replacement 

20,000 15,000 35,000 35,000  15,000 

New/Replacement 
Waste Containers 

100,000 26,000 126,000 126,000  126,000 

Vehicles and Large 
Plant 

152,000 -27,000 125,000 125,000  125,000 

Plant and Equipment 23,000 0 23,000 23,000  23,000 

Internal Operations       

Desktop Hardware 
Refresh 

280,000 -180,000 100,000 100,000  100,000 

Deane Helpline 
Equipment 

25,000 0 25,000 25,000  25,000 

Sub-Total of 
Adjustments to 
Current Approvals 

615,000 -181,000 434,000 434,000  434,000 

       Page 27



 Current 
Approval 

£ 

Capital 
Bids/ 

Returns 
2022/23 

£ 

Revised/ 
Proposed 
2022/23 
Budget 

£ 

Financed By: 

 Revenue 
£ 

 S106 

£ 

Total 
Financing 

£ 

New Budget Bids:       

External Operations       

Closed Church Yards 0 50,000 50,000 50,000  50,000 

Wellington Sports 
Centre Roof 

0 500,000 500,000 500,000  500,000 

Vivary Park Footpaths 0 180,000 180,000 180,000  180,000 

Brewhouse Theatre – 
Roofing Works 

0 200,000 200,000 200,000  200,000 

Housing       

Grants to RSLs 0 228,063 228,063  228,063 228,063 

Sub-Total of New 
Bids 

0 1,158,063 1,158,063 930,000 228,063 1,158,063 

       

Total bids 615,000 977,063 1,592,063 1,364,000 228,063 1,592,063 

 
16.4 The Capital Programme for 2022/23 includes prioritised projects and schemes for the 

year ahead. There is a capital liability not currently included in the proposed budget 
regarding works at North Hill in Minehead. This is likely to involve significant expenditure 
but at the time of preparing this report the requirements have not been costed. This is 
expected to come forward after the Budget for 2022/23 has been approved.  
 

16.5 As set out above in the Revenue Budget above, it is recommended the Council makes 
an additional voluntary repayment of historic capital debt. This is enabled through the 
additional funding in the Settlement reducing the need to use general reserves in 
2022/23 and proposes to support ongoing financial sustainability by using £1m of 
reserves in 2021/22 to reduce debt and financing costs in future years. As well as 
benefitting future general revenue costs of capital, this will soften the impact if the North 
Hill scheme is approved and requires an increase in capital borrowing.  

 
16.6 Duke Street car park is owned by the Council and the land is currently held as an asset 

by the Housing Revenue Account, but is effectively operated as any other car park held 
by the General Fund. The Council is proposing to transfer the car park from the Housing 
Revenue Account to the General Fund. The appropriation of the car park will be 
undertaken in line with the latest technical guidance. Duke Street car park was 
independently valued for the 2019/20 accounts at £358k. The Housing Revenue Account 
Revenue and Capital Budget setting 2022/23 report recommends to approve the transfer 
of Duke Street Car Park from the Housing Revenue Account to the General Fund and to 
delegate authority to the Section 151 Officer to approve the final land transfer value.  

 
16.7 The Capital, Investment and Treasury Strategies will be presented to Full Council in 

March and will provide more information regarding the financing strategy for the whole 
Capital Programme. 
 

16.8 It is recommended to delegate authority for S151 Officer to approve the CIL capital 
grants budgets for CIL capital receipts passed to town and parishes in line with the CIL 
policy. This is just to regularise and simplify the approval of budget changes for 
prescribed amounts of CIL receipts that are passed over to towns/parishes as they arise. 

Page 28



17 Robustness of Budget Estimates and Adequacy of Reserves 

17.1 Under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 the S151 officer is required to report 
to Council on the robustness of the estimates made for the purpose of calculations of 
the budget and the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves. The S151 Officer’s 
statement will be included in the Executive and Full Council reports. 

18 Links to Corporate Strategy 

18.1 It is important that Councillors recognise the financial position, challenges and risks 
faced by the Council and fully engage in the corporate and financial planning processes 
to determine an affordable and sustainable set of corporate aims and priorities. This 
should lead to the Council approving a sustainable final budget and MTFP in February 
2022. 

19 Legal  Implications 

19.1 The Council is required by law to set a balanced budget and failure to do so would result 
in serious financial and service implications and lead to Government intervention. 

20 Climate and Sustainability Implications 

20.1 The delivery of the Council’s climate and sustainability objectives are embedded in many 
of the Council’s revenue and capital budget proposals for both General Fund and 
Housing Revenue Account services. The 2022/23 GF Revenue Budget includes a further 
£500,000 allocation towards the implementation of the Carbon Neutrality and Climate 
Resilience Action Plan, adding to the £500,000 allocated from general reserves in 
2020/21 and £500,000 in the 2021/22 budget for this priority.  

21 Partnership Implications  

21.1 The Council budget incorporates costs and income related to the various partnership 
arrangements, and any changes in relevant forecasts and proposals will be reported for 
consideration as these emerge. 

22 Health and Wellbeing Implications 

22.1 Any relevant information and decisions regarding health and wellbeing will be reported 
as these emerge through the financial planning process. 

23 Asset Management Implications 

23.1 The proposed budget includes an increase in the General Fund Asset Landlord and 
Compliance works. Priorities will be determined in line with the Asset Management Plans 
in place. 

24 Scrutiny Comments / Recommendation(s)  

24.1 Comments are invited at this meeting, for consideration by the Executive and in forming 
recommendations to Members to approve the 2022/23 Budget. 

Democratic Path:   

 Corporate Scrutiny – 26 January 2022 

 Executive – 9 February 2022 

 Full Council – 24 February 2022 Page 29



 
Reporting Frequency:  Annually  
 
List of Appendices 
 

Appendix A Breakdown of Total Spending on Services 

Appendix B Earmarked Reserves 

Appendix C Capital Programme Summary 

 
Contact Officers 
 

Name Emily Collacott 

Direct Dial 01823 218742 

Email e.collacott@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk 

Name Paul Fitzgerald 

Direct Dial 01823 257557 

Email S151@somersetwestandtaunton.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 30



GENERAL FUND DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23 Appendix A

Cost Centre Service Area
Budget              
2021-22 

(£)

Draft Budget              
2022-23 

(£)

Senior Management Team 554,210 593,600

SM000G Senior Management Team 554,210 593,600

Local Governement Review 0 1,375,000

UN100G Unitary 0 1,375,000

Internal Operations 9,324,155 9,720,720

Corporate: 5,473,040 5,518,180
FB000G Comms and Engage Oper Costs 191,580 50,110
SH014G Comms and Engagement 234,090 203,530
CC004G SHAPE Legal Partnership 410,150 430,660
FC000G Governance 406,610 536,450
SC001G Register of Elections 64,350 64,350
SC002G Conducting Elections 14,930 14,930
SC004G Members 498,540 531,240
SC006G Internal Audit 132,320 138,940
SG007G Health and Safety at Work 80,200 208,710
SH001G ICT Infrastructure 1,173,190 815,490
SH002G ICT Communications 350,050 375,960
SH003G ICT Systems 551,020 435,280
SH006G ICT Infrastructure 0 252,540
RH000G Internal Change 272,940 337,370
FE000G People - HR 959,770 988,030
SC003G Learning & Develop 133,300 134,590

Customer: 2,175,800 2,580,520
SE018G Business Intelligence 281,790 396,040
SE020G Business Operations 671,530 741,030
SE006G Deane Helpline (108,890) (68,700)
SE012G Customer Contact Centre 1,000,450 1,107,610
SE030G Visitor Centres (22,480) (16,900)
SE019G Digital Mailroom 0 0
SE029G Income Control and Sundry Debt 342,910 359,800
SE009G Council Tax Collection (rev) 66,170 161,380
LL003G Family Annexe Grant 0 (39,000)
SE010G Council Tax Support (Benefits) 77,580 60,070
SE059G Powys Fraud Contract 30,250 30,250
SE014G Discretionary Housing Payments 0 0
SE041G Rent Allowances (159,930) (159,930)
SE042G Rent Rebates (80,080) (80,080)
SE048G Universal Credit 0 0
FC001G Strategy 76,500 88,950

Finance: 1,675,315 1,622,020
SC007G Non-Distributed Costs 1,904,460 1,969,840
SC009G Corporate Management (1,223,480) (1,274,830)
SH004G Insurance 97,030 29,450
SC012G External Audit Fees 0 110,560
SH012G Finance 897,305 787,000

Page 31



GENERAL FUND DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23 Appendix A

Cost Centre Service Area
Budget              
2021-22 

(£)

Draft Budget              
2022-23 

(£)

Housing Directorate 3,028,290 3,233,680

Housing & Communities: 1,580,930 1,754,280
HS015G GF Homelessness Team 735,550 775,860
SE026G Homelessness 642,000 755,040
SE022G Housing Enabling 154,980 174,980
SE023G Housing Options 48,400 48,400
SE028G Homefinder 0 0
SE027G Rough Sleepers Initiative 0 0

Housing Development & Regeneration: 942,370 967,750
HS023G Housing Strategy Team 107,880 79,090
HS014G Housing Enabling Team 153,690 210,720
HS021G Community Resilience 292,700 264,690
SF003G Community Grants 215,870 217,100
SE007G Community Safety 128,460 184,650
SF020G Community Chest Fund 0 0
SC008G Shopmobility 43,770 11,500

Housing Property: 504,990 511,650
HS003G Corporate Property Team 329,370 332,110
CC008G Housing Partnership 175,620 179,540

Development & Place Directorate 2,230,860 3,744,460

Stragegic Place Planning: 1,695,090 2,772,960
FD000G Strategy and Policy 797,480 724,620
RD000G Strategy - Staffing Costs 0 0
SD001G Planning Policy 0 0
SD002G Garden Town 118,480 222,920
SE033G Local Land Charges (58,150) (60,390)
PG007G Taunton BID 0 0
SE011G Culture & The Arts 202,890 202,900
SE015G Economic Development 551,680 1,077,250
SE036G Planning Applications 137,070 357,090
SE008G Conservation & Listed Build 55,150 62,660
SE045G Sports Develop & Community 40,000 58,470
SE038G Planning Applications & Advice (84,820) (79,710)
SG005G Indoor Sports & Recreation (7,690) 0
SE005G Community Infrasture Levy (57,000) (37,620)
SE035G Planning Obligations 0 72,800
SD005G Phosphates 0 171,970

Major and Special Projects: 535,770 971,500
CC000G Major and Special Projects 396,080 544,760
PG009G Growth Programme 150,000 68,400
RG000G CIC - Staffing Costs 0 0
PG011G Regeneration & Infrastructu 1,190 1,190
SG100G Hinkley (11,500) (10,000)
SG025G Former GWR Goods Office 0 490
SE025G Heritage 0 25,240
SFXXXG Environmental Schemes 0 300,000
PG006G Firepool 0 41,420Page 32



GENERAL FUND DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23 Appendix A

Cost Centre Service Area
Budget              
2021-22 

(£)

Draft Budget              
2022-23 

(£)

External Operations & Climate Change 
Directorate 8,183,351 9,938,584

Climate Change & Assets: 3,680,891 3,953,124

Asset Management 1,435,660 1,143,530
SG003G Asset Management 827,810 978,800
SG008G Deane House 410,780 257,400
SG009G Westpark 135,530 116,790
SG010G Roughmoor Depot (25,610) (10,470)
SG011G Brunel Way Depot 36,900 49,610
SG012G West Somerset House 89,700 147,820
SG013G Roughmoor Enterprise Centre 16,780 0
SG014G Barnsclose Units 3,770 0
SG024G Seaward Way (60,000) (148,010)
SG015G Lisieux Way 0 (221,350)
SG023G Firepool Sth Mgt 0 16,810
SG016G Market House 0 (85,760)
SG026G Coal Orchard 0 11,160
SG017G Flook House 0 19,630
SG018G Bus Shelters 0 11,350
SG021G Allotments 0 (250)

Climate Change 723,110 730,380
SD004G Climate Change 723,110 730,380

Facilities Management 250,190 267,600
SG004G Central Service Overheads 104,380 127,840
SG006G Facilities Management 145,810 139,760

Floods & Harbours 499,821 658,994
SF005G Flood Defence & Land Drainage 401,451 548,874
SF006G Harbours 87,370 83,540
SF008G Coast Protection 11,000 26,580

Licensing (39,070) (18,770)
SE032G Licensing 34,540 17,930
SE043G Taxi Licensing (73,610) (36,700)

Private Sector Housing 243,660 358,240
SE016G Dog Warden Service 36,010 36,410
SE039G Pollution Control (8,120) 255,440
SE040G Private Sector Housing 215,770 66,390

Public Health 567,520 813,150
SE017G Public Health 513,630 309,060
SE021G Food Safety 21,890 259,030
SE046G Welfare Funerals 32,000 32,000
SF009G Pest Control 0 0
CC011G Public Conveniences 0 213,060

Page 33



GENERAL FUND DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23 Appendix A

Cost Centre Service Area
Budget              
2021-22 

(£)

Draft Budget              
2022-23 

(£)

Commercial Services: 4,502,460 5,985,460

Bereavement Services (699,870) (711,140)
SF002G Bereavement Services (699,870) (711,140)

Major Contracts 6,576,710 7,098,930
CC001G Leisure Partnership 535,160 776,190
CC002G Building Control Partnership 58,060 59,360
CC003G Street Cleaning Partnership 1,197,060 1,171,750
CC007G Waste Partnership 4,403,160 4,724,990
CC009G Major Contracts 198,520 265,420
CC010G Fleet Management 184,750 101,220

Parking (4,032,370) (2,486,100)
CC005G Park & Ride Contribution 0 0
CC006G Parking Partnership (4,032,370) (2,486,100)

Planning Obligations 69,610 0
SE035G Planning Obligations 69,610 0

Street Scene & Open Spaces 2,459,790 1,980,950
FF000G Localities - Operational Costs 10,710 0
RF000G Localities - Staffing Costs 0 0
SF001G Grounds Maintenance 289,510 635,100
SF004G Community Parks & Open Spaces 1,654,500 983,240
SF007G Nursery 84,690 (7,150)
SF021G Trees 177,860 205,400
SF022G Play Areas 102,520 124,360
SF010G Operation Clean Sweep 140,000 40,000

Emergency Planning 128,590 102,820
SC005G Emergency Planning 128,590 102,820

Various Technical Capital Accounting Adjustments (2,301,110) (3,332,420)

Net Total Spending on Services 21,019,756 25,273,624

Page 34



General Fund Earmarked Reserves Appendix B

 

Opening 
Balance 

1 April 2021

2021/22 Original 
Budgeted 
Transfers

2021/22 Approved 
Reserve Transfer

2021/22 
Projected 
Transfers*

Projected 
Balance 

31 March 2022

2022/23 
Budgeted 
Reserves 
transfer

Projected 
Balance 

31 March 2023
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

2020/21 Business Rate Holiday S31 Grant 11,695 -11,118   4,905 5,482 -5,482 0
2020/21 Business Rate Losses S31 Grant 3,081 -999     2,082 -897 1,185
Business Rates Volatility  5,375 1,665 -1,250   5,790 -721 5,069
Investment Risk 3,673   -673   3,000   3,000
Investment Assets Sinking Fund 0 500 500 500
Budget Volatility & Risk 2,400   -517 1,883   1,883
Commercial Investment Financing Fund 0 2,173   2,173 -2,000 173
General Carry Forwards 2,112 -2,112 738 738 -530 208
Garden Town 870 -68     802 -213 589
Economic Development Initiatives 769       769 -372 397
Asset Management 687     400 1,087 -650 437
Community Housing* 533       533   533
Other Smaller Balances 2,648 -18     2,630 -166 2,464
Total 33,843 -10,538 -1,362 5,526 27,469 -11,031 16,438

*The projected transfer to/from reserves includes:
 •A current estimate of the 21/22 carry forwards requested, these will be confirmed at year end;
 •The estimated use of the Budget Volatility & Risk reserves as at Qtr2 of £517k; 
 •An estimate for the S31 grant relating to business rates holiday relief and these estimates to be received in 21/22, this could change once the NNDR1 has been completed at the 
end of January.

P
age 35





SWT Capital Programme
 Total Approved 

Budget 
  Capital Spend 

2021/22  
  Capital Spend 

2022/23  
  Capital Spend 

2023/24  
  Capital Spend 

2024/25  
 Total Budget 

Financing 
 Capital 

Grants CIL * 
 Capital 

Grants Other 
 Section 106 
Agreements 

 Capital 
Receipts 

 General 
Fund RCCO 

 Capital Funding 
Reserve 

 Borrowing 

Development & Place
Investment Properties 55,930,249 55,930,249 55,930,249 55,930,249
Taunton Bus Station 49,682 49,682 49,682 49,682
Coal Orchard Construction 2,722,953 2,422,953 300,000 2,722,953 1,000,000 1,722,953
Coal Orchard Dev costs 278,322 139,161 139,161 278,322 278,322
Major Transport Schemes 580,000 580,000 580,000 580,000
Emp Site Enabling Innovation 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Superfast Broadband (Legacy TD) 380,000 380,000 380,000 380,000
Superfast Broadband (Legacy WSC) 170,000 170,000 170,000 170,000 0
Steam Coast Trail 102,186 102,186 102,186 102,186 0
Seaward Way 92,200 92,200 92,200 92,200 0
Firepool Development 475,895 475,895 475,895 475,895
Firepool Master Planning 1,831,104 1,831,104 1,831,104 1,831,104
J25 Improvement Scheme Contribution 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Flooding Alleviation 6,000,000 160,000 625,000 5,215,000 6,000,000 5,762,100 237,900 0
CIL - Cycle & Pedestrian Improvements 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 0
CIL - Education Provision 4,000,000 814,500 3,185,500 4,000,000 4,000,000 0
CIL - Town centre regeneration 1,403,892 1,403,892 1,403,892 1,403,892 0
Heritage at Risk 393,867 393,867 393,867 393,867 0
Regeneration Projects 2,926,123 2,926,123 2,926,123 2,926,123
Employment Land Schemes 575,000 125,000 450,000 575,000 575,000 0
Phosphates 2,000,000 250,000 1,750,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Active Travel 2,258,000 150,000 1,350,000 758,000 2,258,000 2,258,000 0
CIL - Community Development 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 0
Firepool Phase 1 infrastructure 5,156,453 1,000,000 4,156,453 5,156,453 5,156,453
Firepool Phase 1 Carparks 10,352,419 8,277,889 2,074,530 10,352,419 10,352,419
Firepool Block 1 Construction 13,426,849 4,522,924 5,575,982 3,327,943 13,426,849 10,705,000 2,721,849
Other Regeneration Schemes 30,557,856 7,001,699 18,945,954 4,610,203 30,557,856 30,557,856
Total Development & Place 145,263,050 68,260,734 31,309,203 37,754,966 7,938,146 145,263,050 13,165,992 14,157,386 631,767 745,000 0 0 116,562,905

External Operations
Vehicles Acquisition 404,000 252,000 152,000 404,000 404,000 0
Waste Containers 200,000 100,000 100,000 200,000 100,000 100,000
Replacement Play Equipme 193,000 128,000 65,000 193,000 45,000 148,000
SWP Waste Vehicle Loan 822,226 497,618 497,618 497,618
SWP Waste Container (Recycle More) 0 324,608 324,608 324,608
DLO Plant 46,000 23,000 23,000 46,000 46,000 0
Minehead Esplande 15,147 15,147 15,147 15,147 0
Wellington Leisure Centre Air Handling Unit 252,040 252,040 252,040 252,040
East Quay Wall 740,000 740,000 740,000 740,000
Onion Collective Grant (Grant from MHCLG passported) 1,450,087 1,450,087 1,450,087 1,450,087 0
Orchard Car Park - Rewire and lighting replacement - 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 0
Blue Anchor Coast Protection 3,528,226 250,000 3,278,226 3,528,226 3,528,226 0
Watchet, Cleve Hill 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 0
Compliance for Assets 604,720 382,360 222,360 604,720 604,720 0
Car Parks Capital Improvements 809,000 809,000 809,000 809,000 0
New Boiler - Crem 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 0
Wellington Park Lodge 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 0
Elec Vehicle Charging Points 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000
Total External Operations 9,454,447 5,613,860 3,840,586 0 0 9,454,447 0 5,043,461 0 2,153,720 195,000 0 2,062,266

Internal Operations
Members IT Equipment 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 0
Community Alarms 50,000 25,000 25,000 50,000 50,000 0
IT Server Refresh 20,000 0 20,000 20,000 20,000 0
Resources for Change Programme 333,402 333,402 333,402 333,402 0
Finance System 14,207 14,207 14,207 14,207 0
SIP 310,818 263,336 47,482 310,818 310,818 0

General Fund Capital Programme Draft budget for 2022/23  Appendix C 

Budget & Forecast Expenditure  Financing Projections 

P
age 37



SWT Capital Programme
 Total Approved 

Budget 
  Capital Spend 

2021/22  
  Capital Spend 

2022/23  
  Capital Spend 

2023/24  
  Capital Spend 

2024/25  
 Total Budget 

Financing 
 Capital 

Grants CIL * 
 Capital 

Grants Other 
 Section 106 
Agreements 

 Capital 
Receipts 

 General 
Fund RCCO 

 Capital Funding 
Reserve 

 Borrowing 

PC Refresh Project 389,473 109,473 280,000 389,473 389,473 0
Microsoft 365 Migration 57,170 57,170 57,170 57,170
Loan to SCCC 776,000 776,000 776,000 776,000
Intranet Project 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000
Finance System Licences 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000
Total InternalOperations 2,110,070 1,680,418 429,652 0 0 2,110,070 0 0 0 1,181,900 0 20,000 908,170

Housing
Grants to Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) 841,128 635,099 206,029 0 0 841,128 455,682 385,446 0
Gypsy Site 108,502 108,502 0 0 0 108,502 108,502 0
Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) 1,856,000 464,000 464,000 464,000 464,000 1,856,000 1,856,000 0
IAC Staffing and Support 408,000 102,000 102,000 102,000 102,000 408,000 408,000 0
North Taunton Equity loans 600,000 300,000 300,000 600,000 600,000 0
Energy Efficiency Grants 368,000 92,000 92,000 92,000 92,000 368,000 368,000 0
Home Maintenance 228,000 57,000 57,000 57,000 57,000 228,000 228,000 0
Homelessness Strategy 1,175,935 350,000 795,935 30,000 0 1,175,935 1,175,935 0
Prevention Grants 176,000 44,000 44,000 44,000 44,000 176,000 176,000 0
Total Housing 5,761,565 1,852,601 1,760,964 1,089,000 1,059,000 5,761,565 0 4,811,935 455,682 385,446 0 108,502 0

Hinkley Funded Projects
HK C South B/W & North Pethert 250,500 250,500 250,500 250,500
HK C Bridgwater Town Cntre Sup 54,278 54,278 54,278 54,278
HK C Holford & Dis VH - Fit fF 76,092 76,092 76,092 76,092
HK C Watchet Bowling 98,005 98,005 98,005 98,005
HK C Williton Shooting Club 23,000 23,000 23,000 23,000
HK C Cheddar PC 65,000 65,000 65,000 65,000
HK C Bos & HB Council 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
HK C Empty Homes & LOTS 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000
Total Hinkley Funded Projects 856,875 856,875 0 0 0 856,875 0 856,875 0 0 0 0 0

S106 Funded Projects
GF C S106 Creech St Michael Vi 6,147 6,147 6,147 6,147
S106 Watchet Bowling Club 22,767 22,767 22,767 22,767
S106 Open Door 32,456 32,456 32,456 32,456
Salvation Army 23,518 23,518 23,518 23,518
Norton FW playing pitches 523,831 25,000 498,831 523,831 523,831
Ruishton PC Outdoor Gym/Fence 27,237 27,237 27,237 27,237
Wellington CC Nets Project 14,779 14,779 14,779 14,779
Cotford St Luke Village Hall 4,597 4,597 4,597 4,597
Compass Construction Ltd 2,654 2,654 2,654 2,654
North Curry Village Hall 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Rufus Strong unspend funds 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500
Tottle Developers 31,640 31,640 0 31,640 31,640
Total S106 Funded Projects 702,125 203,295 498,831 0 0 702,126 0 0 702,126 0 0 0 0

Notes *
CIL is a budget allocation in principle as funds are 'paid as paid' i.e. CIL contributions need to be collected first in order to be allocated to the areas identified 

P
age 38


	Agenda
	4 Corporate Scrutiny Committee Forward Plan
	5 Draft General Fund Revenue Budget and Capital Estimates 2022/23
	Appendix A Breakdown of Total Spending on Services
	Appendix B Earmarked Reserves
	Appendix C Capital Programme Summary


